ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 23, 2015
1: 05 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative

David Tal erico, Co-Chair
M ke Hawker, Vice Chair
Bob Herron

Crai g Johnson

Representative Kurt O son
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

Represent ati ve Andy Josephson

Representative Geran Tarr

VEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak, Co-Chair

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

REPRESENTATI VE M KE CHENAULT
SENATOR CLI CK BI SHOP

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N&( S) :

Al aska Gasline Devel opnent Corporation Board O Directors

Joe Paskvan - Fairbanks

- HEARD

Rick Halford - Eagle River

- HEARD
Hugh Short - Bet hel
- HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

HOUSE RES COW TTEE

March 23, 2015



W TNESS REG STER

JCE PASKVAN, Appoi ntee

Board of Directors

Al aska Gasline Devel opment Corporation (AGDC)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska
Gasl i ne Devel opnment Corporation Board of Directors.

Rl CK HALFORD, Appoi ntee

Board of Directors

Al aska Gasline Devel opnent Corporation (AGDC)

Eagl e River, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska
Gasl i ne Devel oprent Cor poration (AGC) Board of Directors.

HUGH SHORT, Appoi ntee

Board of Directors

Al aska Gasline Devel opnent Corporation (AGDC)

Bet hel , Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska
Gasl i ne Devel opnent Corporation (AGC) Board of Directors.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1: 05: 25 PM

COCHAIR DAVID TALERICO called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:05 p.m Representatives Seaton,
Josephson, Tarr, Hawker, O son, and Talerico were present at the
call to order. Representatives Herron and Johnson arrived as
the neeting was 1in progress. Representative Chenault and
Senator Bishop were al so in attendance.

CONFI RMATI ON HEARI N&( S) :
Al aska Gasline Devel opment Corporation Board of Directors

1:06:40 PM

CO CHAI R TALERI CO announced that the only order of business is
the confirmation hearing for the Alaska Gasline Devel opnent
Corporation Board of Directors. He requested the first
appoi ntee, M. Joe Paskvan, to present his testinony.

1: 07: 06 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 23, 2015



JOE PASKVAN, Appointee, Board of Drectors, Al aska Gasline
Devel opnent Corporation (AGDC), testified as appointee to the
Al aska Gasline Devel opnment Cor poration (AGDQO) Board of

Di rectors. He said he was born in the territory of Al aska and
was seven years old at statehood. A gasline in Al aska has been
tal ked about since before he was born, he noted. It is an issue

that is very close to heart of everyone in Alaska, certainly in
Interior Alaska where Al askans are being crushed by the high

cost of heating oil for hones and businesses. He said he has
been in private law practice since 1981 and was an elected
official for a nunber of years. Havi ng been active in his

cormunity as a hockey coach, church committee nenber, and
Sunrisers Rotary Club, he would |ike the opportunity to serve as

a public nenber of the AGC Board of Directors. Wth his
| egi sl ative experience he will be able to help the board work
with the |egislative process to advance the goal of House Bill 4

[28th Al aska State Legislature], which is to provide the | owest
[gas] rates to Al askans.

1:10: 14 PM

MR. PASKVAN stated his belief that the Al aska Stand Al one
Pipeline Project (ASAP) is not in conpetition, nor should it be
in conpetition, with the Alaska LNG Project (AK LNG. He said
he found out about [Resolution No. 2015-01] at the [3/12/15 AGDC
Board of Directors] neeting regarding the question of American
National Standards Institute (ANSI) standard 900 pipe as
conpared to ANSI standard 600 pipe. 1In regard to the resolution
he listened to M. Dave Cruz of the board's Technical Conmttee
and M. Frank Richards [AGDC staff nenber] and advisor to the
board for the ASAP Project. He related that M. Richards
i ndi cated AGDC had assenbled a technical team capable of putting
together an industry standard class 3 cost estimate for an ANS

600 pipe, and that this technical [team had arctic engineering
skills in addition to general skills, and that if the team was
di sbanded it would be difficult to come back at a |ater date and
put together a skilled teamto try to get an ANSI 900 class 3
i ndustry standard cost estinate. M. Paskvan said it wll take
two to three weeks for the additional cost estimates, then the
team woul d be di sbanded because its work is done. An ANSI 900
standard has the potential for greater conpression, 2220 pounds
per square inch (PSlI) pipe pressure as conpared to 1480, so the
gas treatnent facility and additional conpression stations also
need to be addressed. It is not to develop a conpeting project,

he reiterated, it was never advanced as a conpeting project. It
was purely that AGC has a technical team with arctic skills
that has put forward an industry standard cost estimate for the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 23, 2015



ANSI 600 pipe and whether that should al so be done for the ANS
900 pipe, and the determnation was that it was appropriate
given AGDC had skilled who could very tinely put together an
i ndustry standard class 3 cost estimate.

1:13:55 PM
MR. PASKVAN said it appears he wll be on the Commercial
Commttee and possibly the Technical Commttee. Hs skills as

an attorney would apply to the Cormercial Conmittee in regard to
contracts and retaining experts, since as an attorney he is
experienced in retaining experts to advise him for ensuring he
is able to get to the heart of a matter as efficiently as
possi bl e. The goal is that AK LNG proceed forward, whether it
is a 42 inch or a 48 inch line. Only if the producers determn ne
at the stage gate that they do not want to nove forward with AK
LNG is it a question as to what is the alternative that Al aska

m ght pursue. In respect to the resolution, he further pointed
out that the line was a 36 inch line before the resolution and
is a 36 inch line after the resolution; as well, it was a | ean

gas product in the pipeline before the resolution and is a |ean
gas product in the pipeline after the resolution. He reiterated
that the ASAP line will only be relevant should AK LNG not
proceed through the stage gate.

1:16: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON recalled that M. Paskvan was co-chair
of the Senate Resources Standing Conmittee during sone Kkey
moments in the history of all of this. He noted that Title 31
states the governor should consider [a potential board nenber's]
expertise in natural gas pipeline construction, operation, and
mar keting, as well as finance, |arge project nmanagenent, and so
forth. He requested M. Paskvan to describe his background and
knowl edge in the context of where things are at now relative to
M. Paskvan's role on the Senate Resources Standing Comm ttee.

M. PASKVAN replied that facts count for him because he knows
that to present a legal case he nust have the facts. As co-
chair of the Senate Resources Standing Comrittee, he and his
staff worked hard to understand the facts. The commttee joined
the Anerican Society of Petroleum Engineers in order to have
access to the society's docunents. The commttee wanted to
learn by going back into the society's history regarding what
issues exist within the industry and what the society was
identifying as the science of petroleum He takes facts very

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- March 23, 2015



seriously, he said, and tries to advance that within the policy
structure.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON requested M. Paskvan to describe his
background in regard to the debates during passage of the Al aska
Gasline Inducenent Act (AG A) and Alaska's Clear and Equitable
Share (ACES) and how they may or nmay not have guided M. Paskvan
at this point.

MR. PASKVAN responded he was in the legislature for the ACES
debates, but not the AGA debates. He inquired whether
Representative Josephson is focusing on the issues of internal
rates of return and reserves.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON sai d yes.

MR. PASKVAN answered the question is so broad that it can be a
day-1 ong di scussi on.

1:19: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER asked whether M. Paskvan applied, or was
approached, to be on the AGDC Board of Directors.

MR. PASKVAN replied he isn't sure exactly how that occurred
other than he had indicated to people, one being M. Witaker
[ Governor Wal ker's chief of staff], that he was not interested
in sonmething full-tinme, but rather sonething part-time in the
oil and gas industry that would utilize his years as co-chair of
t he Senate Resources Standing Conmittee.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER concluded that M. Paskvan was nore or
|l ess recruited for sone state job and that M. Paskvan had said
he wanted a part-tine, not full-tinme, job and this is the one
that was found for him

MR. PASKVAN responded that no one approached him with a full-
time job. The question was whether he mght be interested in
doi ng sonething, and |like many Al askans his response was that if
t he governor believes he can help, then he wants to hel p because
that is his duty as an Al askan. So he had said he would help
but didn't want to do sonething full-time year around, in part
because he wants to spend tinme with his famly, has been a
| awyer for 35 years, and is at a stage in his life where he
wants to work very hard on AGDC because he thinks AGDC can
deliver the lowest rates to Al askans and he can participate in
t hat and honor Al aska.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 23, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER, regarding M. Paskvan's interest in a
| ess demandi ng, part-tinme position, stated that the AGDC Board
of Directors has been very active and very involved, so it has
been a full-time job. He requested M. Paskvan to explain how
he will approach being a director given how the directors have
been working in the past.

MR. PASKVAN acknow edged it is sonetines nultiple days per week
and certainly multiple days per nonth, but not something that is
8:00 to 5:00 Monday through Friday. For exanple, on April 8 the
board has both a conmercial neeting and a technical neeting

followed by a full board neeting on April 9. Prior to those
nmeetings he will prepare and will then be at the neetings for
those two days. He can be back in Fairbanks with his wife after
the full board neeting is done and therefore it is not |like he

must nove to Anchorage to be part of the board.

1:24:02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COLSON asked whether M. Paskvan has ever
represented the Al aska Gasline Port Authority (AGPA) or been on
AGPA' s boar d.

MR PASKVAN answer ed no.

1:24:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his appreciation to M. Paskvan
for talking about [Resolution No. 2015-01]. He recalled M.
Paskvan's statement that the [3/12/15] board neeting was the
first time M. Paskvan had heard of the resolution.

Representative Seaton understood the decision was unani nous by
bot h continui ng and new board nenbers.

MR. PASKVAN replied yes, it was at the recomendation of M.
Ri chards who was advising the board, his own personal questions,
and the statenents of Chair Burns and M. Cruz of the Technical
Comm ttee.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON i nquired whether the governor asked M.
Paskvan to take a vote one way or another on this resol ution.

MR. PASKVAN responded the governor had not personally contacted
hi m He was told by M. Witaker. The governor did not call
and say he had to do this in order to be on the board, there was
no contact whatsoever.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 23, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired whether the chief of staff had
asked M. Paskvan to take a certain vote on this resol ution.

MR. PASKVAN answered no, [M. Wiitaker] did not contact him at

all; [M. Witaker] just told him that he was on the board.
Once on the board, he said, his lines of comunication went
through Chair John Burns as far as coordinating all of the
I ssues. Nei ther M. \Whitaker nor the governor contacted him

before the neeting, he reiterated.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON understood the purpose of the resolution
was to determne whether, wth higher conpression and higher
t hi ckness of pipe walls, the volune wuld be |arge enough to
make the 36-inch pipe an econom cal project.

MR. PASKVAN replied the short answer is yes. The | onger answer
is the expectation that sone additional cost for quantity of
scale would Iower the ultimate rates for the consuner. Projects
with greater scale always deliver lower rates to the consuner.
CGetting that class 3 industry standard cost estimte would nove
[ AGDC] further along the road towards determning that. Only if
the AK LNG falters would ASAP need to step forward, and if that
is the case, he wants to ensure creating an econom c project, if
not a nore economc project, to deliver the lowest rates to
Al askans.

1: 28: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER recal led that at the conmttee's [3/13/15]
nmeeting, nenbers had requested a transcript of AGC s [3/12/15]
Board of Directors neeting so that commttee nenbers could
understand exactly what was said and exactly who responded to
what . He said he listened in on that AGC board neeting, and
today he is hearing a couple of things that do not quite conport
wi th his understanding of exactly how things were characterized.
He asked whether the commttee has received the AGC transcript.

CO CHAIR TALERICO confirnmed the transcript had been requested,
but said the transcript has not yet been received.

REPRESENTATIVE OLSON recalled the commttee being told the
transcri pt would be received by [3/20/15].

CO CHAI R TALERI CO answered he is unsure but recalls that date as
wel | . He assunmed the conmttee will have the transcript very

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- March 23, 2015



soon, at which time it wll be distributed to all commttee
menbers.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER asked what M. Paskvan thinks of the
statutory requirenents placed by the legislature on the
considerations that the governor shall take into account when
maki ng appointnments to the AGC Board of Directors. He asked
M. Paskvan to address exactly how he qualifies under each one
of those criteria.

MR. PASKVAN al |l owed he has not been involved in the oil or gas
patch and does not bring that skill set to the table. As a
public board nmenber, he said, he brings to the table the Al askan
viewpoi nt as far as soneone from pre-statehood days to this day
and as a forner legislator to try to ensure that the Al askan
consuner benefits as nmuch as possible. He cited AS 31.25.020
[which states the board shall have five public nmenbers] and that
[the governor shall consider an individual's expertise and
experience in natural gas pipeline construction, operation, and
mar ket i ng; fi nance; | arge project managenent ; and ot her
expertise and experience that is relevant to the purpose,
powers, and duties of the corporation.] M. Paskvan said he has
strong marketing skills, but not necessarily within the natura
gas pipeline arena. Regarding |arge project nanagenent, he said
that is not a nmanagenent issue and, as he indicated earlier, in
his role as an attorney he has been involved in litigation that
dealt with state contracts on behalf of public corporations, as
well he has dealt with private construction disputes over |arge
construction projects. He said he is generally famliar wth
the construction industry and public finance construction
i ssues, but not within the oil and gas industry.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said the key criteria [in AS 31.25.020]
are experience in natural gas pipeline construction, operation

mar keting; experience in finance; and experience in |arge
proj ect managenent. He then opined that [M. Paskvan's]
gualifications are that he is an Al askan who cares.

1: 33: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR noted that the statutory |anguage says the
governor "shall" consider an individual's expertise, it doesn't
disqualify an individual as a public nenber for not perfectly
fitting. Wen conparing M. Paskvan's experience to former AGDC
board nenbers, she said she thinks there are some simlarities
to that |egislative background and |egal background that could
be beneficial. Each of the three new appoi ntees has an area of

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 23, 2015



expertise that could provide benefit in noving forward. She
requested M. Paskvan to talk about his role as a board nenber
and the relationship he would have with the AGC staff, who
would be the nore technical experts, for assistance to the
Technical Conmmttee. She offered her understanding that AGDC
board nenbers are not the people actually conpleting sonme of
those work projects, and that board nenbers rely on strong
relationship wth the AGC staff and outside contractors to
ensure that enough information as is necessary is had.

MR. PASKVAN replied that when the resolution came up with this
i ssue of an ANSI standard for a pipe, he addressed his questions
to fellow board nmenber M. Cruz, who has a considerable wealth
of knowl edge in the oil and gas industry. M. Cruz discussed
this issue and explained what the purpose of the pipe was. M.
Paskvan said that when it then canme to the policy issue of why
this should be done, he asked M. Frank Richards, who was
advising the entire board, why [AGDC] would want to pay for that
class 3 industry standard cost estimate. M. Paskvan nai ntai ned
that he can provide benefit to the AGC board while others on
the board, M. Cruz for exanple, have greater skills in the
actual oil and gas industry.

1: 35: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether M. Paskvan did any work
as co-chair of +the Senate Resources Standing Committee on
predecessor bills to House Bill 4 that did not advance.

MR. PASKVAN responded the short answer is that he was co-chair
of the Senate Resources Standing Commttee at the tine sone of
those bills cane through. He stated his belief that the AGDC

board should be, and is, nonpolitical. He conti nued: "W are
here to advance the AK LNG Project and to have a fallback that
can be as econom c as possible. That's where we're at right

now. And | think that that's why |'mhere.”

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON, relative to the fallback, inquired
whet her M. Paskvan perceives a consideration of the ANSI 900 as
a nodification of Alternative 1, which is House Bill 4, the ASAP
line, or sees it as a whol e new project.

MR. PASKVAN answered that first of all it is not a project. It
is sinply a cost estimate within the paraneters of the 36 inch,
| ean gas pipeline that existed before the resolution. It didn't
go froma 36 inch line to a 42 inch or 48 inch line. It didn't
go from a pipe ANSI standard that exceeds, for exanple, AK LNG s

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -9- March 23, 2015



pipe wall thickness standard. What happened during that
resolution is, in his understanding, within the intent of House

Bill 4 to advance an ASAP project. It is just to get cost
estimates while AGDC has a skilled team with arctic engi neering
skills. This team will soon be di sbhanded and once disbanded it

would be very costly to get that cost estimate and would
potentially cause a great delay in tinme as well.

1: 39: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER, in regard to relying on staff and relying
on others, asked whether it is correct that M. Paskvan voted in
favor of the resolution as it was proposed to figure out the
cost of wupgrading/enlarging these two new pipe sizes and pipe
configurations.

MR. PASKVAN replied he was one of the board nenbers who
unani nously voted to ook at the ANSI 600 and ANSI 900, and with
the ANSI 900 the additional gas treatnment issues and conpression
i ssues as far as a cost structure.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVKER i nqui red what M. Paskvan's foundation was
for knowi ng and being confortable in making this decision which
i nvol ves spendi ng state noney. A certain anount of npbney was
set aside to nove forward with a gas pipeline project, he said,
and given the state doesn't have a lot of nobney right now he
doesn't want to see that noney squandered or wasted in any way.
He asked what information M. Paskvan had in order to know that
those particular two pipe configurations were the right ones to
| ook at, and that once nore information was known there woul dn't
be yet nore configurations to |ook at. Represent ati ve Hawker
said he doesn't believe it was ever discussed on the record at
that [board] neeting and suggested that maybe board nenbers knew
sonet hing that wasn't on the record.

MR. PASKVAN responded that ANSI 600 and ANSI 900 were presented,
and that he thinks an ANSI 1500 was al so presented but the board
was nhot interested in addressing an ANSI 1500 wall thickness.
It was solely to increase it to the ANSI 900, he said, and that
was based wupon the discussions from M, Cruz and the
recomrendati ons and statenents of M. Richards.

1:41: 35 PM
REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he is hearing that "the why" for M.

Paskvan's [decision on the resolution] is that it was at the
recomrendation of M. Richards and on the testinmony of M. Cruz.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 10- March 23, 2015



Representative Hawker said he has listened to that part of the
[ board neeting] and he does not believe he heard M. Richards
recommendi ng anything, only that M. R chards eval uated options
in response to questions. He said his concern is how M.
Paskvan knew it was the right decision to nake.

MR. PASKVAN offered his understanding that M. Richards, as the
ASAP advisor to the board, separate from M. Fritz Krusen who is
the AK LNG advisor to the board, was saying a skilled [team was
together, that the class 600 study was either done or very near
conplete, and that this additional study could be conpleted
probably within the terms of when this [tean] woul d be di sbanded

anyway, and if not, it was just a smdgen |onger. M. Paskvan
said his takeaway was that M. R chards believed the board's
action to be a good thing. He said he wi shes he and everyone

el se had a copy of the transcript because he believes that M.
Ri chards was giving the benefits of why the board should advance
t he resol ution.

1: 43: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER rel ated that at the end of the discussion
on pipe sizing he heard M. [Joe] Dubler [AGC Vice President,
Commercial Operations] providing information for [the board] to
utilize in its decision making. He maintained that M. Dubler
and M. Richards were providing information, not telling the
board what to do. Representative Hawker offered his belief that
[the board] was informed that staff had professional concerns
that the action [the board] was taking mnmight violate a
contractual relationship that AG)C has in another matter. He
asked whether M. Paskvan took that counsel into consideration,
and if so, how M. Paskvan determned not to follow the advice
of staff and to pass the resolution wthout know ng for sure
whet her a contractual agreenent was being viol at ed.

MR. PASKVAN replied that he believed [the board] was not and
that [the board] was advised that it was not. In further
response, M. Paskvan said he does not believe that [the board]
violated any contractual relationship and he does not believe
that anyone told |[the board] that it was [violating a
contractual relationship].

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER requested the commttee specifically get a
transcript for exactly how the board was counseled and how the
board nenbers reacted to it. Gven the sanctity of contract, he
said, this is an issue of a |lot of concern.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- March 23, 2015



1:46: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER recalled M. Paskvan stating that he is
going to be on the Technical Commttee. Representati ve Hawker
understood that Chair Burns has been on the record stating that
to be on the Technical Committee requires the individuals on
that conmttee to have executed the accepted confidentiality
agreenents. He asked whether M. Paskvan is willing to execute
t hose agreenents.

MR. PASKVAN responded that he has indicated he is wlling to
sign an appropriate confidentiality agreenment, he agrees wth
that, and his wunderstanding is that such a confidentiality
agreenent is being evaluated. As an attorney he understands the
absolute critical necessity in the appropriate circunmstance to
mai ntain absolute confidentiality and probably appreciates the
confidentiality issue nore than nost because of the ethics to
hi s profession of confidentiality.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER asked whether M. Paskvan is indicating
that the current confidentiality agreenents are not appropriate.
He further asked whether the current confidentiality agreenents
that were negotiated with the Departnent of Law, AGDC s counsel
and the other contracting parties, are adequate for M. Paskvan
to sign.

MR. PASKVAN answered that none have been presented to him his
understanding is that "they're working on it," and he does not
have a problemin signing that. To the extent that he is being
asked to comment upon sonet hing he has not seen....

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER interjected and allowed that his question
is therefore inappropriate. He w thdrew the question.

MR. PASKVAN added that he absolutely agrees with and will sign
the confidentiality agreenent.

1: 48: 18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR opined that the new board nenbers provide
nore geographic diversity to the nenbership than previously
because it now extends up to Interior Alaska. She asked whet her
M. Paskvan would like to comment about his role from the
Interior perspective, given the energy crisis in that area.

MR. PASKVAN replied that his region of Alaska is economcally
hurting right now, primarily for two reasons. First is the high

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- March 23, 2015



cost of energy. The potential for a large dianmeter line, 42
inches or 48 inches, will give Interior Al aska the best solution
to its nunber one econom c problem Second is the uncertainty
of US nmlitary presence in Interior Al aska due to the
possibility of governnment cutbacks to the mlitary.

1: 50: 07 PM

CO- CHAIR TALERICO requested M. Paskvan to describe what he
thinks is the right course forward.

MR. PASKVAN responded that job nunber one is AK LNG the state's
role through AGC is to pronote AK LNG whether AK LNG noves
forward with a 42 inch Iine or a 48 inch Iline. The bigger the
line the better due to the potential for reduced unit cost by
bi gger volunme. |If AK LNG falters, then Al askans deserve to have
the best shot at an economcally viable alternative if one
exi st s.

1:51: 25 PM

CO CHAIR TALERICO opened public coment on M. Paskvan's
confirmation. After determning that no one wi shed to testify,
Co-Chair Talerico closed public comrent.

CO- CHAI R TALERI CO requested the second AGDC board appoi ntee, M.
Rick Halford, to present his testinony.

1:52:12 PM

RICK HALFORD, Appointee, Board of Directors, Alaska Gasline
Devel opnent Corporation (AGDC), testified as appointee to the
Al aska Gasline Devel opnent Corporation (AGDC) Board  of
Di rectors. He began by noting that while he is a 1968 graduate
of Al aska Methodist University, his real education started in
this room when he was on the House Resources Standing Conmittee
and the first issue was the consideration of an interim tariff
for the Trans-Al aska Pipeline System (TAPS). Committee nenbers
must meke decisions. The education that conmttee nenbers
receive is one of the greatest benefits and one reason why he
stayed in the legislature for 24 years. I ndustry will try to
educate nenbers from their point of view He had incredible
opportunities to learn as either a resources conmttee nenber or
a resources chair for the majority of his 24 years, as well as
the opportunity to serve multiple tinmes as a majority leader in
both the House and the Senate and go through nmany of these
proj ect s. Sonme of the nobst interesting were the opportunity to

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 13- March 23, 2015



read both BP and Atlantic Richfield Conpany's (ARCO books and
busi ness plans in the BP/ ARCO nerger. It was an experience in
signing a confidentiality agreenment and taking a position and
having to live up to that confidentiality agreenent even though
he would have very nuch liked to explain all the information

that he saw It was a window into those two industries that is
very inportant. They are our partners - not our friends, not
our enemes - [the state] needs to defend itself and give them
the opportunity to defend thenselves in any of these things. He
offered his belief that conflict between the small line and the
large line is probably the nost dangerous thing due to negative
power. But, positive power is had when everyone works together.

It's going to be very, very difficult to advance a gasline in
this climate in this world at this tinme and everyone nust be
wor ki ng t oget her. He said he gets discouraged when he sees the
differences rising to the point of difficulty in terms of it
advancing a project. Qoviously, the "majors" project is the
project that has the greatest chance, maybe the only chance, but
having sone fallback is inportant. He conti nued: "Al I felt
we were doing when that resolution was put before us, and it was
put before us wi thout any warning to ne either, was |ooking at a
different grade of pipe so that at some other time you could
| ook at conpressor stations, you could |ook at gas conditioning,
you could | ook at gas |iquefaction. The pipe is the cheapest
part of the whole project, whether it is big or small. The
ot her two conponents overwhel mthe cost of the pipe. But if you
had a higher pipe standard you mght be able to, at a later
date, choose to up the capacity to nmake sonething nore econonic

But it is always understood that the nmjor pipeline, the big
pi peline, fromthe producers who have the econom c horsepower to
carry it forward, is the first option. It's only as an
alternative that any of the rest of the stuff was considered.”
He added that he very much believes that a pipeline is possible,
but he also believes it is going to be very difficult.

1:57: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER of fered his appreciation for the political
experience of M. Halford. He said it is fair to say that M

Hal ford is not a pipeline person as per those other statutory
requi renents, but the extensive experience that M. Halford
brings certainly carries some weight. Probably one of the
greatest things crafted into the concept behind AGC and now the
AK LNG Project, he opined, was to elimnate politics from the
pr ocess. Represent ati ve Hawker asked whether M. Halford, given
his political experience, will be able to divorce politics from
his decision making and truly nake decisions as a professiona

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- March 23, 2015



with experience and knowl edge in gas pipeline construction,
operation, marketing, finance, and maj or project nanagenent.

MR. HALFORD replied that everyone lives in a world of politics,
whether it is the politics of our own famly or own business,

and he doesn't know how that can be totally separated. Thi s
project is going to be driven by econonics. In a contest
bet ween economics and politics, economcs eventually w ns. He

said he believes his advantage is the experience that he gained
in chairing the nmerger conmttee and being a nmenber of a gasline
commttee in approximately 1999, where he listened to a l|lot of
people who were trying to teach from their perspective what the

details of their business was. He does not think politics can
ever overwhelm logic or economcs, he opined, and he doesn't
want to see politics do that. Unless it is econonic, a project
iS never going to happen. "W have a |ot of opportunity to stop

us from getting a gasline in this cycle, and very, very carefu
opportunities to get a gasline if possible," he added.

2:00: 12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER requested M. Halford to talk specifically
to his experience with gaslines and gasline conpani es.

MR. HALFORD responded that he was involved in the Al aska Gasline
Port Authority (AGPA) in dealing with Senpra Energy and | ooking

at some of the things that Senpra was interested in. But, he
doesn't pretend to be an expert on gasline conpanies - he has
nmet with them and listened to them and to all of the conpanies
of today and sone of the past. He said he doesn't believe a
public menber will be found who is a gasline specialist, nor
were the previous public nenbers gasline specialists. But, he
continued, he does believe that the experience in dealing with
those interests for that many years - in their interna

docunents in the merger, in their external proposals over the
years on tax issues, developnment issues, investnment credit
i ssues, construction issues, and all the other pieces - is a

part of the education that board nenbers get.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER, expressing concern, inquired about M.
Hal ford's relationship with the Al aska Gasline Port Authority.

MR. HALFORD answered that about a decade ago he was a consultant
to the Alaska Gasline Port Authority for a year or so.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER asked how nmuch M. Hal ford was paid.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- March 23, 2015



MR. HALFORD replied he cannot renenber the anpount, but it was
much nore than he initially thought reasonable until he realized
that he saved AGPA noney when he advised not to do sone things.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER noted that according to a research story
by the "Journal of Comrerce,” M. Halford was paid $100,000 in
2005 for |obbying work. Representati ve Hawker asked whether
that is an accurate statenent.

MR. HALFORD responded he thinks that is accurate and he thinks
they paid him nore than that to continue, but he does not
remenber what the provisions were.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he and several other of the
committee's nmenbers were in that 2005 session. He said AGPA has
continued to be extrenely critical of the AK LNG process and the
AGDC devel opnent. He inquired whether M. Halford, having
wor ked for AGPA, still agrees with its position of opposing what
the | egislature has acconplished in the recent years.

MR. HALFORD answered that that was a decade ago and he doesn't
know what AGPA's current position is. When he worked for AGPA
on the Senpra proposal he thought it had some nerit at the tine.
He added that his interest is in supporting anything that has
the economics to go forward.

2:03:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR recalled her geographic diversity question
to the previous appointee and noted that M. Halford spends part
of his time in Western Al aska. She asked how it mght help the
AGDC Board of Directors to have sonme of these perspectives from
around the state in terns of thinking about projects and
opportunities for in-state gas.

MR. HALFORD replied the sad part is that the system will work
for the Railbelt and Fairbanks, but that it is going to be very,
very difficult to get the benefits out to rural Alaska. But, he
said, if it successfully generates incone to the state, that
income and those services provided with that income can help
rural areas. For exanple, power cost assistance works, it nakes
things a little bit nore equal. However, the fact is that a
gallon of mlk or a gallon of aviation gas in Dillingham costs
about $8 today and that's a huge difference in the econom cs of
the world. It costs a fortune to do anything in those places so
a person has to nake a lot nore to be able to nmake it econom c.
Econom c devel opnent and the survival of rural Alaska is a very

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 16- March 23, 2015



i nportant part of any consideration or issues being |ooked at by
the commttee and a gasline is just one of them

2:05:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON inquired what M. Halford' s reaction was
when asked by the governor to be a nenber of the AGDC board.

MR. HALFORD responded that the governor asked w thout much
di scussion, he answered "sure" and didn't spend a lot of tine
t hi nking about it. He expected to have nore interaction on the
topic, but instead a |ot of other things went on. He was j ust
getting ready to resign from the Conpensation Conm ssion, a
commi ssion that has an exclusion on any other activity, so he
went ahead and resigned. He didn't hear anything from the
governor's office or the boards and comm ssion for four to six
weeks, and then they nade the appointnent. They didn't do a | ot
in terns of endorsing a position or trying to explain to him
He net with the staff at the Al aska Gasline Port Authority and
with DNR to get sone ideas about the background and where things
were at this point. However, he got alnobst no reaction or
interaction or callback fromthe governor's office on the issue.
It doesn't nmean the governor's office wasn't concerned, but
that's the way it worked.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON related that sone people had quite sone
consternation regarding the governor's remarks about conpeting
pi pel i nes. He inquired whether M. Halford thinks the AGDC
board should be in the business of attenpting to nmarket gas.

MR. HALFORD answered he doesn't know. He said he thinks the
governor's vision seens to be a market driven pipeline and the
governor wants to see if there is sone interest from that
di rection. H s understanding is that that is not a comon
nodel, but it may not be inpossible. He said he has a lot of
faith in the governor's energy and desire to do sonething.
Al though it is unfortunate that the |eaders of the state are
cast in a position of disagreenment on an area that is very, very
inportant to have agreenent to go forward, he hopes [AGDC] can
explore at |east sonme of the market questions to see if there is
potenti al . In Japan and Korea there is potential for prem um
val ues for gas. He is just working his way up the process to
gather information at this point. He said he thinks it very,
very inportant that the legislative branch and the executive
branch are together. The way the separation of powers works

the legislature is the appropriating arm and has the resources

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- March 23, 2015



to do sonmething, but the governor is in charge of the personne
that do it. Wthout agreenent, he said, failure is guaranteed.

2:09:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether M. Halford' s recollection
of the [3/12/15 board] neeting in which the resolution cane
forward to study the ANSI 900 and the higher conpression is that
a teamwas in place to do that rapidly whereas once the team was
di ssolved it would be costly to do that in the future.

MR. HALFORD replied that that is the way it was presented. He
said he tried to separate the issues to be just the size of the
pi pe because he thought that was the nbst containing issue. A
| oner strength pipe can never be upgraded. But the pipe was the

smal | est conponent. It costs a huge amobunt of noney to "up
engi neer" the gas conditioning and the liquefaction. He said he
was interested in limting the question to just the grade of

pi pe because he thought that was easier and |ess expensive. As
it was, that notion passed that way, but a further notion went
back and said to |look at the costs of gas conditioning and
liquefaction. So, it ended up being the sane even though he had
made an effort to sinplify it. When | ooking at a backup plan
the nost flexibility is probably the wsest thing to have.
That's why he thought the board was going to |ook at just pipe
size, but then ended up looking at the whole thing. He said he
shares Representative Hawker's concern about conserving noney
and the massive expenditures for studies that never end up with
result. However, the process is such that a nunber of good
projects nust be studied in order to get one good project going,
so things are studied for hundreds of mllions of dollars that
are in conflict with each other. He said he hopes that what is
received for not a lot of noney is sonme sinple understandable
nunbers and that it maximzes the benefit of a potential that's
only a potential backup plan. He stated it doesn't threaten the
producers, shares information with the producers, lives up to
the confidentiality requirenments, and doesn't endanger sonething
that is already a very delicate bal ance.

2:12:14 PM
REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he thinks the record will show that

M. Halford was a registered | obbyist back in the Al aska Gasline
Port Authority (AGPA) days.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- March 23, 2015



MR. HALFORD responded that he did register at |east one year,
but maybe not the second year when he may not have had that much
i nteraction.

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON recalled M. Halford visiting his office in
2004 and meking no bones about identifying hinself as a
| obbyi st.

MR. HALFORD concurred, saying he went through the registration
process.

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON further recalled that it was when the North
Sl ope Borough was trying to pull out and M. Halford canme by to
visit him

MR. HALFORD said he doesn't renenber the details, but renenbers
he was obviously a | obbyi st.

REPRESENTATI VE = HAVKER, regarding the state conducting a
marketing activity, inquired whether M. Halford is famliar
with the nane of Audie Setters.

MR. HALFORD replied he doesn't think so, although the nane is
famliar.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER urged M. Halford to beconme famliar with
M. Setters because M. Setters has a significant contract with
the Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR) dedicated to pursuing
markets for Alaska's natural gas that mght be generated from
any pipeline project. Representative Hawker inquired whether
M. Halford thinks it would be better for the state to have DNR
be the one looking at marketing Al aska's resources or sonething
that should be transferred to AK LNG itself.

MR. HALFORD responded he does not know the answer and woul d need
to listen to a | ot nore data.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER offered his respect for M. Halford's
answer. He said the state does, and has had, a very significant
ongoing nmarketing activity that M. Halford, as a nenber of the
AGDC board, should nake a point to be aware of.

MR. HALFORD answered he thinks he nay have heard from DNR Deputy
Conmi ssioner Marty Rutherford that the aforementioned nane is
soneone who coul d provide information.

2:14: 58 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- March 23, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER recol | ected a dialogue he heard sonewhere
that if the pipe is built heavily up front initially it doesn't
have to be used until necessary, but it would be in place at
such tinme as the demand might be there for it. He asked whether
M. Halford s statements can be interpreted as favoring this
"prebuild concept,”" where nore is built today than needed in
antici pati on of expanded service in the future.

MR. HALFORD replied he has not thought that through to the
prebuild concept at all. All he was doing was asking the
guestion, How much does it cost to upgrade the pipe so that if
expanding the capacity was wanted it could be done? He said he
just wanted a nunber because the nunbers are overwhelmng in
terms of their size, and if that were the one place where
flexibility could be built in and then deal wth conpressor
stations, a larger gas conditioning plant, and LNG at a future
time, there would be nore flexibility. Al'l he was |ooking for
was flexibility.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER, regarding the teans/contractors at AGDC
that have done the work to get to where things are today, noted
that those contracts had |argely been "stood down" in favor of
AK LNG He pointed out that enabling |egislation was approved
| ast year to not nove forward any further on the backup project.
Testinmony before the conmmittee has been that that project has
been slowed down to let AK LNG get legs and run. Utilizing
those contractors right now for anything is going to require
i nvesting noney, Representative Hawker opined, and the governor
has his executive order (EO that prohibits advancenment of the
ASAP Project. He asked how M. Halford expects to pay for these
contractors.

MR. HALFORD responded that that was discussed and a condition in
the resolution is that the adm nistration has to deal with that.
He said it was M. Richards' interest in keeping the team
together that "kind of carried the overall conmttee" to say it
will look at nore than just pipe size. So, the board ended up
back at the sane resolution that was introduced, but the board
did it in a circle that came back around. The argunent of
keepi ng that team together and not |osing that expertise is what
brought it back around against the opinion of just |ooking at
pipe size. "And we all agreed to that as we listened to it, but
it was Frank Richards trying to keep that team together and it
was also the executive director advocating for that, saying
that, 'that if we don't have these people we won't be able to
get those answers.'"

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- March 23, 2015



2:18: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON inquired whether M. Halford has any
recollection of the staff during this neeting offering sone
adnoni shnent that the resolution mght broach a question about
vi ol ations of previous agreenents, that it was treading on sone
grey area that was worrisone to anyone on the staff.

MR. HALFORD answered "there was concern about confidentiality
agreenents and what they could share and what they couldn't
share.” As was brought up by Representative Hawker, there was
significant discussion about confidentiality. The attitude was
that there was some concern about the specific confidentiality
agreenent that had been offered before, but that there could be
confidentiality agreenents drawn that were a little bit narrower

that people would feel confortable wth. There was sone
di scussion of that in the conmttee. He said he thinks there
were staff nenbers that said things that were a little bit
different in perspective. There was one person from the LNG

project versus the small project and they had a little bit of
difference, but the board followed the things that they agreed
on. There were concerns, he continued, and the concerns are
legitimate in ternms of the other project and how the two
projects share information and how they get along and whether
they are conpetitors or allies. There was even sone discussion
of ending up with one project that was an amal gam of the two.

2:20: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER argued that his recollection had nothing
to do with the discussion of confidentiality agreenments and
contracts, but rather with M. Dubler's counsel that noving
forward wth the resolution violated the terns of a business
contract with other parties. Representati ve Hawker said he has
concerns that a question raised by a senior AGC staff nenber
was i gnor ed.

MR. HALFORD replied that the resolution was brought forward
wi t hout the board having seen it before the neeting. There were
guestions that went both directions and it seened |ike staff
menbers were not in total agreenent.

2:22: 09 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- March 23, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said M. Halford strikes him as soneone
who is confortable in a setting where he is given a set of
choi ces and asked to nake deci si ons.

MR. HALFORD responded that the people sitting here today know
they have to be able to live that way and have to be able to say
no to sonmebody who tonorrow wll be asked for his or her
support. And that's the way the political world works and the
better a personis at it the nore successful he or she will be.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON offered his wunderstanding that M.
Paskvan stated that through Senate Bill 138 the |Ilegislature
issued a directive that in effect said this is currently the
pri mary devel opnment and LNG pl an. He asked whether M. Halford
agrees with that.

MR. HALFORD confirned that, absolutely, the large line is the
primary plan.

2:23: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON noted M. Halford is one of three people
replacing three former nmenbers of the AGDC board. He inquired
whether M. Halford has reviewed and can comment on the history
of the previous nenbers' body of work.

MR. HALFORD answered he is not sure it is fair to coment on
their body of work and their world and their tine. He said he
knows they spent a |lot of nobney to get a lot of information and
he hopes it is all very valuable to the current board and gives
sone backup. The legislature granted incredible latitude to the
AGDC board to ask those kinds of questions and find those things
out - in a backup position. He said it is the broadest |atitude
he has seen in any legislative creation in the tine that he has
been involved in | ooking at those things.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON clarified his question is whether the work
done by those fornmer board nmenbers has proven valuable to the
process that will continue.

MR. HALFORD replied he very much hopes so; he does not have any
information that would say it is not. It is a large anount of
noney and a | arge anmount of analysis. |If [AK LNG goes forward,
everything spent on the information for the backup is nobney
expended that didn't have to be spent. So that's the bal ance
that has to be looked at in ternms of what is spent. Having a
backup is inportant and having it be as good as it can be is

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- March 23, 2015



important, but not to the extent of threatening the primary
purpose or to the extent of spending noney that doesn't need to
be spent.

2:25: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR surmised M. Halford has sone |evel of
confort because the work can take place inmmediately before the
team is disbanded, but that M. Halford has put his commtnent
to the AK LNG Project as the primary project.

MR. HALFORD responded "absol utely."

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked whether M. Halford sees the April 9
[ 2015] AGDC Board of Directors neeting as being where there wll
be a decision point. She asked whether M. Halford agrees that
the information wll be received quickly and that this new
evaluation will not threaten the AK LNG Project. She further
asked how nmuch tinme M. Halford is willing to let go by before
sonet hing i s pushed asi de.

MR. HALFORD answered he would like to know pretty quickly and
believes the team should be able to produce information on the
pi pe strength standard pretty quickly. The other parts of it
are going to be the nore expensive and nore tinme consum ng, he
said, and he is not totally convinced a huge anmount of noney has
to be spent to totally redesign a gas conditioning plant to a
much, nuch larger size; but he is going to listen. The argunent
that carried the day, at least for asking the question, was that
this teamwas still together and this needed to be asked now.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR said it sounds like M. Halford has no

problem being an independent voice and wll be wlling to
guestion whatever information is presented. She asked whet her
M. Halford agrees that this will be his role noving forward.

MR. HALFORD replied, "If we can work together, | think we have a
reasonabl e chance of success; if we cannot work together 1| think
there is no chance of success of having a gasline in ny
lifetime."

2:28:39 PM
REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER sai d he thinks the statenment was just nade
that nothing [AGDC] is currently doing is threatening or wll

threaten any of the projects and [AGDC] has until April 9 wth
no consequences. He requested M. Halford to explain what

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 23- March 23, 2015



happened with AGDC s suppl enental environnental inpact statenent
(SEI'S). He further requested M. Halford to comment on the
statenents made by M. Fauske before the House Resources
Standing Committee that he felt that the sanme considerations
could very well apply to federal uncertainty and federal concern
about noving forward on the AK LNG export permt.

MR. HALFORD responded that he thinks the SEIS is a 30 day del ay
to see what the interaction is between the executive and
| egi sl ative branches this session and whether people can get
t oget her and go forward.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER stated the U S. Arny Corps of Engineers
suspended work on the SEIS. He maintained that the proposal put
on the table by the AGC board inplies very strongly that the
backup project is not an in-state gas project, but rather an LNG
export project. That would nmean the Corps of Engineers isn't
the permtting agency, but rather the Federal Energy Regul atory
Comm ssion (FERC) is the permtting agency. So, he posited, it
is far nore than a 30-day delay while this is sorted out and
there is the potential of having to go through a conplete start-
over in designing the backup project.

MR. HALFORD answered that the only thing the board deci ded was
to ask the question about the cost of the cheapest conponent,
and then the second action added the other conponents. He said
he looks at it as wanting to know what it costs to find out
Fi ndi ng out the pipe question is the easiest part of it, finding
out the liquefaction and particularly the gas conditioning is
the nost expensive part of it and there's a question as to
whet her even the sanme process will work if it is upsized. The
guestions overwhelm any answers. The only one that is
relatively sinple is the pipe question and if an answer can be
had in two weeks then the question was certainly worth asking.
The ot her questions depend on what they cost.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER nmintained that that is the |level of
uncertainty that has caused the permtting process to be put on
hol d. When questioned, M. Fauske indicated that the aggregate
of these doubts, new questions, and no one being able to say
what the plan is now, could very well cause concerns with the
export permtting by FERC because [the partners] are not aligned
and working together as was established under Senate Bill 138
He asked whether M. Halford shares the concern that it is
problematic to have a lack of alignment and questions being
raised so close to a decision on front-end engineering and
design (FEED) or whether M. Halford's opinion is that there are

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- March 23, 2015



absolutely no problems with re-engineering the whole process
within 12-24 nonths of FEED

MR. HALFORD replied the questions have to be answered very
qui ckly because the dangers are real. The opportunity my be
real, but if an answer doesn't cone back quickly and it is
unknown what the options are, then Representative Hawker 1is

right. Confusion is just as big a danger as msalignnment or
| ack of agreenent, he said, so his hope is that a plan, wth
concurrence of the governor's office, will be presented to the
AGDC board at the next board neeting. He agreed that

Representative Hawker's questions are very legitimte and said
he has the same questions.

2:33:50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON inquired why M. Halford wouldn't have
taken a couple of days to determ ne whether there was a
contractual violation, given the advice from AGDC staff in this
regard and M. Halford's own statenents that the dangers are
real, people must work together, and there is a lot of risk. He
opined that it is counterintuitive to get advice that may dis-
align everyone and not take the opportunity to determ ne whether
it is or is not a contractual violation. It seems a little
reckl ess, he added, or shows a disregard for the partnership to
nove forward, to hope there aren't ramfications rather than
waiting a couple of days to find out for sure.

MR. HALFORD responded that, in his mnd, both the inpoundnent
| anguage in the governor's large projects "thing" and that issue
were to be considered by the staff as they went forward with the
resol ution. So, the board was asking to get a nunber first on
the pipe and secondly on the rest of it, that's all, and he
couldn't see how that could be a violation of anything. In
regard to dealing with the governor's executive order on
suspendi ng restrictions, he said he thinks the staff has to cone
up with a justification and how it wirks and what to do and they
have to do that with regard to dealing with any agreenents that
they're also a part of in their other role. That is their job.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked why not wait to advance the
resolution to find out for sure that it did not violate a
contract, given the advice that it mght.

MR. HALFORD answered, "How can asking for the cost of a pipe
size violate a contract?"

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 25- March 23, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said if he got advice from soneone that
it may be in violation, he would want to nmake sure of that
before he noved forward, regardless of what he personally
t hought .

MR, HALFORD replied there were other people advising that unless
this teamis utilized the teamw Il go away and this is the way
it has to be done. There were other people advocating for
| ooking at a sane size pipe strength standard, he said. | t
didn't seem to him that asking the question could violate
anyt hi ng. The discussion went nore to the confidentiality
agreenents and how to get a new confidentiality agreenment and
that is what he was concentrating on in that whole period of the
di scussi on.

2: 37: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR remarked it will be good when the comittee
gets the transcripts because, as she understands it, the
guestions were related to confidentiality and potential sharing
of information and that was what was broadly being defined as
contract disagreenent. She asked whether there were two
separate confidentiality issues about sharing information and
how that data m ght be shared versus a contract that would have
actual ly been viol at ed.

MR. HALFORD reiterated that the board was just asking questions
about size that didn't seemto affect anything else. He said he
too would like to see what the transcript says because much of

this runs together. | was trying to learn a whole |ot of things
at the sanme tine, trying to be objective, and yet also gathering
information as fast as possible. Basically, [AGDC] is 100

percent of the small pipeline and also 25 percent of the biggest
conponent of the big pipeline and [AGDC] has an obligation to
everybody else who is involved. Plus there are all the staff
t hi ngs. There is $150 mllion and 30 or 40 contract enployers
and 20 or 25 enployees, so there are a |lot of people and trying
to figure out what their roles are. There are two people that
seemto be the managers of one project and the other project and
trying to understand what they're saying. The whol e concept
that [the |egislature] has developed is a good concept. To a
have a backup is a good idea. But the details of managi ng that
through one public corporation are going to be a little bit
cunber sone.

2:40: 04 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 26- March 23, 2015



CO-CHAI R TALERI CO announced that the committee will receive the
[ 3/12/ 15 AGDC Board of Directors] transcript by m d-week.

2:40:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON understood that any slowng of the SEIS
is the slowi ng of the ASAP backup pl an.

MR HALFORD concurr ed.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON understood that the ASAP Project was
ahead of the AK LNG Project and that AK LNG needed to catch up
and even pull ahead of ASAP.

MR. HALFORD concurred, saying that this was pointed out.
2:40: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON inquired as to whether the Al aska Gasline
Port Authority is active or inactive.

MR. HALFORD responded he doesn't know.

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON remarked that it seens like there are a |ot
of former Alaska Gasline Port Authority people working in the
adm ni stration: the governor, his chief of staff, the attorney
general, M. Halford, and at |east one staff nenber of AGDC. He
asked who el se there m ght be.

MR. HALFORD answered he doesn't know.
REPRESENTATI VE OLSON i nqui red whether it is coincidental.

MR. HALFORD replied he doesn't think it is coincidental, people
have been trying to get a gasline for years. They' ve had
different visions of what it should be, different attitudes
toward how to nmake it work, and there hasn't been agreenent. To
get a gasline is going to take a level of agreenent that hasn't
been seen in a long tine.

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON noted that an attenpt was nade |ast week to
amend HB 132 to include a study of the Richardson H ghway wth
the term nus in Val dez. He said that anendnent cane out of the
clear blue and didn't go anywhere. This route has been studied
since 1975 or 1976, so this amendnent is what nmade hi m curi ous.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -27- March 23, 2015



MR. HALFORD responded he doesn't know. He said the econonics
are going to drive it where ever it goes and whatever it does.

"When you | ook at the big nunmbers,” he continued, "I don't think
we have the horsepower to nove the nmjors unless we're together
and that's going to be difficult.” The majors always represent
their shareholders very well and it is always very, very

difficult for small denbcracies to deal with the expertise the
maj ors bring to the table.

2:43: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, regarding his name being brought up in
relation to the contracts that are on hold, said his
understanding is a little different than what was portrayed.
H s wunderstanding is that those contracts were put on hold
because if [AGDC] continued spending noney on things that were

of benefit to AK LNG as well, then [AGC] was spending 100
percent state dollars on something that [AGDC] was required to
give free to AK LNG as a participant. He expressed his concern

that board nmenbers are up for confirmation and there is talk
about some potential anorphous contract violation, vyet the
chairman of the board and the continuing board nenbers also
voted for this resolution. The people nost famliar with the
contracts voted for this resolution, so [the commttee] is
making a nountain out of a mole hill when talking about new
nmenbers and their support for what the continuing nenbers were
pr oposi ng. He asked whether this is correct in understanding
that the consideration of the ANSI 900 and expanded capacity is
in response to having the ability to know whether it would be a
nore econom c project.

MR. HALFORD answered correct.
2:44: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON requested M. Halford to explain what he
nmeant by a new plan that would be brought forward by the board
in concurrence with the governor.

MR. HALFORD replied that he said that's his hope and he hopes
t he board sees sonething by the next neeting.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he is concerned about "concurrence
with the governor.” He asked what M. Halford neans by that.

MR. HALFORD responded he has not had that nuch comrunication.
He said he thinks the staff, the governor's office, the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 28- March 23, 2015



Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR), and everybody involved
should be trying to come up with the answers being asked here.
As a board nenber he wants to see that al so.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON inquired what wll happen if the board
conmes forward with a plan that doesn't have the governor's
concurrence.

MR. HALFORD reiterated that if the legislature is not on board,
if the executive is not on board, then the AGC board is not
going to get anywhere either. "Unless we have agreement, we're
not going to be able to go forward," he said.

2:46: 25 PM

CO CHAIR TALERICO opened public coment on M. Halford's
confirmation. After determning that no one wshed to testify,
Co-Chair Talerico closed public comrent.

2:46: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked what commttees M. Halford mght be
servi ng on.

MR. HALFORD answered he hasn't decided. The technical conmttee
is probably going to be the nobst educational but the one that
may drive the project the nost may be the marketing conmmttee
and that is probably where he is nost interested. "In the short
term we can drive economcs through the political system" he
said, "but in the long term economcs wins, and that's to ne
probably the nost interesting hope is that our interest and the
maj ors' interest can be aligned at mninmumpain to either side."

2:48: 00 PM

CO- CHAI R TALERI CO requested the third AGC board appointee, M.
Hugh Short, to present his testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON stated for record that M. Short is his
nephew-i n-1 aw.

2:48: 33 PM
HUGH SHORT, Appointee, Board of Directors, Al aska Gasline

Devel opnent Corporation (AGDC), said he would like to address
Representative Johnson's earlier conversation and the |egal

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 29- March 23, 2015



guestions that cane up. First,
followng witten statenment [original

| am honored to be before you
to serve you, the Governor
as a board nenber of
Cor por ati on.

the St
situation with the
| am thankf

The econom c future of
precari ous
prices globally.
your
to

toward a sustainable future.

As a board nmenber of
responsibility seriously.
i ncl ude pursui ng:

Mt

1
2.
the sale of LNG to gl obal
i nstate demand

3. Creating jobs for

conpetitively priced,

devel opnment, production
nat ural gas
4. I ncreasing opportunities

busi nesses

5. Providing additional
Al aska and LNG partners
6. Building infrastructure
onshore and offshore oil
producti on

Wth that, | would
background and how

l'i ke
I

and the State of
the Al aska Gasline Devel opnent

| eadership and the responsibility that
lead us through this difficult

AGDC,

to
bel i eve

however, he spoke from the
punct uation provided]:

today to be considered
Al aska,

is in a
in oi
you for
you bear,
econom c sSituation

ate of Al aska
dramatic drop

ul to each of

I would take ny
op sSix priorities would

reliable in-state gas;
Commerci al i zati on of ANS gas resources through

mar kets and access for

Al askans in the exploration,

and transportation of

f or Al aska- based

revenues to the State of

for the devel opnent of

and gas exploration and

di scuss
woul d be

briefly
that |

ny
a

gualified and effective board menber for AGDC.

| have served in a career in business and finance,
nost recently as the Chairman and CEO for the Pt
Capital famly of conpanies. Pt Capital is in the
m dst of building a private equity firm that focuses
on investnents in small to md-market conpanies in
Al aska, Canada, Iceland and Greenland. Qur conpany is
a first for Al aska, as traditional private equity
investnment in Al aska has been through PE firns that

are headquartered outside. I

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 30-

have built

this conmpany

March 23, 2015



anchored by one of the |argest sovereign wealth funds
globally with one of the nobst pristine reputations,
and surrounded by other well-regarded investors.

Additionally, our subsidiary Pt Securities is the nost
northern FI NRA - regul at ed, SEC-regi stered,
broker/deal er investnent bank in North Anerica. Pt
Securities works with small and m d-market conpanies
that have needs to raise capital and debt for the
growt h and devel opnent of their business.

Both of these services are first to market conpanies
that have been created to help spur the further
devel opnent of a strong, financial services sector in
Al aska.

During ny over two-year tenure as chairman of the
Al aska Industrial Devel opnent and Export Authority,
nore than $530 mllion in capital and associated
contributions by partners were appropriated; in
addition the board approved due diligence on another
$295 mllion in infrastructure devel opment projects,
including the first investnents in offshore drilling
rigs.

As Chairnman of the Alaska Energy Authority, concurrent
to the Chairmanship of AIDEA, | was responsible for
the inplenentation of the Susitna-Watana Hydroel ectric
Pr oj ect . The project will generate 50 percent of the
current Railbelt’s electric demand, or 2,800,000
megawatt hours (MM) of annual energy, once it cones

online in 2024. The installed capacity is 600
megawatts (MW . As proposed, Susitna-Watana Hydro
will include construction of a dam reservoir and
related facilities in a renote part of the Susitna
Ri ver. Transmi ssion lines connecting into the
existing Railbelt transm ssion system and an access
road will also be constructed.

The Al aska Energy Authority is in the early stages of
a long, conplex permtting process with the Federal

Energy Regulatory Comm ssion (FERC), which | led as
Chai rman of AEA The anticipated cost is $5.19
billion, including Iicensing and construction.

Wien | took over as Chair of both AEA [Al aska Energy
Authority] and AIDEA [Alaska Industrial Devel opnent

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 31- March 23, 2015



and Export Authority], performance eval uati ons had not

been conpleted in a few years. I found this
unacceptable and immediately began to work with staff
to inplenment these inportant nanagenent tools. We

tied key performance netrics to overall organi zationa
goal s of both AEA and Al DEA, and focusing the work of
the board on the large strategic items that drove
results.

As the President and CEO of Alaska Gowh Capital,
Alaska’s only Business and Industry Devel opnent
corporation, | was responsible for the deploynment of
over $240MM of financing for the construction of a
t el ecomuni cations network for GCl, utilizing creative
finance tools to ensure the best possible cost of
capital to support the high cost Arctic, rural built
out . The renote communication towers create state of
the art communi cation networks, inproving health care,
econom c opportunities, and life/safety for many in
rural Al aska.

In addition to this, | was responsible for the
financing of businesses that worked in Alaska's oil,
mning, tourism retail, logistics, and transportation
i ndustri es. These conpanies form the support
foundation for the core natural resource exploration
and production that drives our econony in Al aska. In
a state that is so dependent on the access to |ands
and resources, the financial support of AGC was vital
to the business operations of nany conpanies that
ot herwi se would not be able to access capital.

On a personal note, ny Inupiag nother MIldred Short
was born in the isolated community of Mses Point in
1942, just outside of Elim M father Hugh Short Sr.

who turns 90 this year, immgrated to Alaska in 1956

from northern British Colunbia. | was born in the
western town of Bethel, and had the honor of serving
as the mayor of the community. | live in Grdwod now

with ny wife of 19 vyears, Trina, and our three
daughters Madilyn, Karis and Elizabeth

As a board nenber for the Al aska Gasline Devel opnent

Corporation, | would work to ensure that the business
of the AGDC was squarely on the focus of
commercializing Al aska’s gas, not politics. | have a

track record of focusing on ensuring that the State

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 32- March 23, 2015



does not make bad business decisions, and creates
opportunity and jobs for those that I|ive here. I
woul d use this to serve on the board and contribute to
the inportant task at hand, wth the Governor and
Legislature, to nmake Al aska’s gas conpetitive globally
and build the inportant infrastructure necessary to
make this happen.

2:55: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON inquired whether the six priorities
listed by M. Short were in any particul ar order.

MR. SHORT replied there is no prioritization as he thinks all of
those are inportant. He pointed out that those priorities are
fromthe Heads of Agreement that the State of Al aska signed. He
said he thinks those are very clear goals that the state's
partners, TransCanada, and the State of Al aska have endorsed.
He offered his belief that those are inportant m |l estones and
goals for this project.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON requested M. Short to address the
previ ous conversations with the other two nom nees.

MR. SHORT replied that when the transcripts are received by the
committee, menbers will clearly see that he asked the question
to the [AGDC] CEO and president, AGC s general counsel, and Joe
Dubler as to whether any contracts are being violated with the
notions and the resolution that was presented. The transcripts
will show that the answer he got back from [AGDC s] general
counsel, Ken Vassar, was that there are no violations of any
contracts, the biggest hurdle is that "AGB7" would have to be
lifted in order to spend nore noney. He said Joe Dubler also
made a remark approxinmately that sanme tinme that there are
provisions within AK LNG where data that is shared between ASAP
and AK LNG may have to be revisited if [AGDC] noves above 500
mllion cubic feet. So, M. Short continued, the data that is
shared between the two projects would need to be discussed anong
the partners and there was about 30 mnutes of conversation
around what that neans - what data, whose data is it. It wll
be seen in the transcripts that [AGDC] doesn't own the data
necessarily. So, he specified, he wants to be very clear that
from his perspective he did ask the question. He is very
concerned that [AGDC] doesn't violate any contracts; it is an
i nportant part of any partnership.

2:58: 47 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 33- March 23, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he thinks he nmay still have a
difference of opinion on exactly what was being discussed at

what tinme in relation to the questions. He urged that the
commttee get those transcripts so they can be accurately
eval uat ed. Representative Hawker said he recalls M. Short

stating at the AGC board neeting that he wants to make this the
nost conpetitive project in the world. He asked what M. Short
means by conpetitive.

MR. SHORT responded that the consunption of LNG globally has

been growing at a significant pace - double digit growth
annual | y. In addition, sone very large projects are comng on
stream around the world, including in Myzanbi que, Australia, and
Yamal . So, a lot of additional LNG is already past final
i nvestnment decision (FID) and into construction, and ultimately
comng into the narket. To be successful, [an Al aska project]

is going to have to conpete against all of these projects and be
able to provide the gas where ever [an Al aska project] can get
the contracts necessary for project financing. He said his job

as a board nenber is to ask the tough questions. He asked
numer ous questions during that AGDC board neeting to ensure that
[ AGDC] is always keeping an eye on the ball - that at the end of

the day it's going to be the market that determnes [the
project's] success and being able to operate, nanage, and
provi de the revenues to the State of Al aska, not necessarily the
infrastructure itself. So, when he says conpetitively, he is
keeping in mnd to conpete on a gl obal basis.

3:01:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he heard M. Short state the need to
be able to successfully nmarket [Alaska's] product against a
comon fungible product available from other sources in the
wor | d. That marketing is a function of DNR, Representative
Hawker mai ntai ned, not AGDC. He asked whether that affects M.
Short's thoughts on this.

MR. SHORT answered that his role as a board nenber for AGDC "is
around strategy and ensuring that our teamis representing us in
the partnership with AK LNG as well as ASAP." He said he
believes very firmy that if marketing occurs "that's not a role
for the board of directors to do and perhaps that would be a
role for our partners within AK LNG we don't have the capacity;
or, perhaps it is a role for our governor to do as the chief
executive officer of the State of Alaska.” Menbers of the AGDC
Board of Directors are not experts in marketing, and he is glad

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 34- March 23, 2015



to hear about the consultants on board at DNR as he did not know
t hat before. He said he believes [marketing] is sonething that
is a big hurdle for [the AGDC|] project.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER offered his appreciation for M. Short
comng to visit with himearlier and noted that M. Short is one
of his constituents. He related that he and M. Short talked
about marketing and buying and the global nmarkets, and in that
conversation M. Short talked about his experience in his
capital conpany and the contacts he has and people and
experience all over Asia. He quoted M. Short as having said
that he wanted to put his "people with ours to make a
transaction work." However, Representative Hawker continued,
that raised the question about either an actual conflict of
interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest. He
requested M. Short to resolve this for him

MR SHORT replied that he thinks Representative Hawker's
characterization of his statenent is inaccurate. The st at enent
that he said, or perhaps should have said nore clearly, is that
there are a nunber of partners out there globally - buyers that
are very interested in Al aska gas. Probably the three | argest
markets that need to be focused on as the State of Al aska and as
partners in AK LNG is the energing Chinese nmarket, which is
growing faster than any other LNG market and which started in
2006. Mal aysia is becomng a net inporter of LNG as opposed to
exporting LNG And I ndia. The expertise that he has of
follow ng and understanding the markets adds to his ability to
be an effective board nmenber for AGDC. He pointed to his record
as a board nenber for the Alaska Industrial Developnment and
Export Authority (AIDEA), as well as the Al aska Energy Authority
(AEA), and the stellar ethical conduct that he had and no

conflicts. At that tine he was an enployee of Alaska Gowth
Capital and Arctic Slope Regional Corporation (ASRC) had a
contract with AIDEA to pursue an Arctic port. So, he walled

hinself off of any conversations internally in A DEA and he
wal led hinmself off internally at ASRC so that there was no
information that cane to him nor did he have any vote or any
vested interest in that project because of the potential
appearance or potential conflicts.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER concurred with M. Short's portrayal of
what was said in their prior neeting in regard to M. Short
successfully walling hinself off from conflicting decisions.
Representati ve Hawker asked whether M. Short is stating here
that he did not say in their prior neeting that he has market
contacts in Asia and wants to put his people with "ours".

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 35- March 23, 2015



MR. SHORT responded he is stating that the way Representative
Hawker heard that, if that is the way it was heard, is incorrect
in the conversation context. He apologized for mssing the
context and said he does not believe that that was the intent
nor the way that it was stated and he believes there are no
i ssues there.

3:06: 09 PM

REPRESENTATIVE TARR noted M. Short's strong financial
background and asked which commttees M. Short would like to be
on to best serve the AGDC board.

MR. SHORT answered he has been assigned to the commercial and
governance conmmttees, although he is wunsure whether it 1is
final. He said he was assigned to the governance committee
because of his nanagenent role at AlIDEA and AEA and assigned to
the comercial conmttee because of his understanding of gl obal
macr o- economi Cs.

3:07:16 PM

CO CHAIR TALERICO opened public comrent on M. Short's
confirmation. After determning that no one wi shed to testify,
Co-Chair Talerico closed public comrent.

CO CHAIR TALERI CO announced that the commttee wll wait on
nmoving these confirmations until after the conmttee receives
the [3/12/15] AGDC Board of Directors neeting transcripts.

CO CHAI R TALERI CO, responding to Representative O son, agreed to
provide commttee nmenbers with at least 24 hours to read the
transcripts before putting the <confirmations back on the
committee' s agenda. He further noted that any paperwork signed
at the conmttee |evel neither pledges allegiance to noving the
appointees forward in confirmation nor rmeans opposition to
confirm ng the appointees. It only verifies that hearings have
been held at the commttee |evel. Responding to Representative
Tarr, he noted that the confirmation hearing scheduled for 6:00
p.m today was cancelled due to a scheduling conflict.
Responding further to Representative Tarr, Co-Chair Talerico
said public testinmony would be taken at the next confirmation
hearing for the three appointees.

[ The confirmation hearing was continued and concluded at the
conmttee's neeting held on April 1, 2015.]

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 36- March 23, 2015



3:09: 53 PM
ADJ OQURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 3:10 p. m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 37- March 23, 2015



